



EUROPEAN MEDICINES AGENCY
SCIENCE MEDICINES HEALTH

7 April 2023

Submission of comments on '*Draft Qualification Opinion for Stride velocity 95th centile as primary endpoint in studies in ambulatory Duchenne Muscular Dystrophy studies*' (EMA/SA/0000083386)

Comments from:

Name of organisation or individual

EFPIA

Please note that these comments and the identity of the sender will be published unless a specific justified objection is received.

When completed, this form should be sent to the European Medicines Agency electronically, in Word format (not PDF).

Official address Domenico Scarlattilaan 6 • 1083 HS Amsterdam • The Netherlands

Address for visits and deliveries Refer to www.ema.europa.eu/how-to-find-us

Send us a question Go to www.ema.europa.eu/contact **Telephone** +31 (0)88 781 6000

An agency of the European Union



1. General comments

Stakeholder number <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>	General comment (if any)	Outcome (if applicable) <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>
	<p>EFPIA strongly supports the qualification of this new primary endpoint, expected to provide a more objective and sensitive, and less burdensome tool that will benefit the entire DMD community.</p> <p>In order to encourage a learning ecosystem, the EMA could update the Q&A on digital technology based methodologies to reflect the learnings from this procedure. (https://www.ema.europa.eu/en/documents/other/questions-answers-qualification-digital-technology-based-methodologies-support-approval-medicinal_en.pdf)</p> <p>EFPIA would also like to suggest to take up the results of this qualification opinion into the DMD guidance (https://www.ema.europa.eu/en/documents/scientific-guideline/guideline-clinical-investigation-medicinal-products-treatment-duchenne-becker-muscular-dystrophy_en.pdf). As suggested in the EMA guidance on the amendment of relevant guidances as appropriate (page 8 of https://www.ema.europa.eu/en/documents/regulatory-procedural-guideline/qualification-novel-methodologies-drug-development-guidance-applicants_en.pdf)</p>	
	<p>As established in the qualitative evidence, change in stair-climb, limiting falls, ability to self-transfer, and walking (i.e., ability to perform activities of daily living), were considered by patients and caregivers to be more important than</p>	

Stakeholder number <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>	General comment (if any)	Outcome (if applicable) <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>
	stride velocity. These outcomes could be developed as complementary, patient-relevant secondary endpoints.	
	<p>Based on the current understanding of disease, the context of use should be extrapolated to patients as early as 4 years old:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> - Natural history studies in Duchenne Muscular Dystrophy (DMD) have identified comparable disease progression, as well as a significant functional and biological overlap in patients between age 4 to 7 [1, 2]. Although the life threatening morbidities (i.e. cardio-respiratory failure) of DMD tend to present at a later age, DMD does cause symptoms and difficulties in 4 year old patients and younger [3, 4]). The effects of muscle breakdown is serologically evident from birth as shown by high levels of creatinine kinase , and although patients do achieve walking developmental milestones eventually, they crucially lag behind their peers in all aspects of movement from this early point onward [3, 5, 6]. This becomes more evident over time as children with DMD begin to become weaker and have their quality of life impacted by their impaired physical ability [7, 8]. - In addition, due to the progressive and irreversible nature of the disease, earlier treatment is expected to have the largest disease-modifying effect. In fact, in DMD, earlier treatment with steroids has been suggested to demonstrate more beneficial effects compared to later treatment [9], and other neuromuscular diseases have similarly found that earlier treatment is more effective in ameliorating the disease [10]. <p>As a result, the vast majority of recent trials in ambulatory DMD now include patients from 4 years of age and use the same outcome measures in 4 to 7 year old participants [11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16]</p>	

Stakeholder number <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>	General comment (if any)	Outcome (if applicable) <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>
	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> - North Star Ambulatory Assessment (NSAA) is the most used clinical efficacy endpoint in recent pivotal DMD trials involving ambulatory boys and is considered a suitable efficacy outcome in children as early as 4 years old [13, 14,17]. As Sponsors want to include 4 year olds patients in clinical trials, restricting the context of use of SV95C to patients aged 5 and above would prevent the use of the SV95C in favour of NSAA. - Timed function tests and physiotherapy assessments require compliance with instructions which may lead to younger children struggling to perform the test, therefore there is a pressing need to develop outcome measures that can be used in younger populations in clinical trials. A major advantage of SV95C when compared to other efficacy outcomes is the increased objectivity and sensitivity which may allow for a reduction in sample size, and by extension, of the time to marketing authorisation. It would also reduce the burden to study participants. <p>Therefore, broadening the context of use of SV95C to patients from 4 years of age would reflect the current understanding of disease, significantly increase the uptake of the endpoint, and result in benefits to the DMD community.</p>	

2. Specific comments on text

Line number(s) of the relevant text <i>(e.g. Lines 20-23)</i>	Stakeholder number <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>	Comment and rationale; proposed changes <i>(If changes to the wording are suggested, they should be highlighted using 'track changes')</i>	Outcome <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>
Lines 2555-2556		<p>Comment: It was concerning that the applicant made the absolute statement on line 30 that SV95C “does not rely on patient motivation or subjective assessment”. It was encouraging that CHMP’s discussion made the more reasonable and limited statement that it “relies LESS on patient motivation or subjective assessment” [emphasis added]. It is important that we continue to allow for the possibility that monitored behaviors like ambulation may still be influenced by such factors.</p> <p>Proposed change: No change. This is only a statement of agreement.</p>	
<p>Lines 2576-2577</p> <p>With respect to the content validity of the SV95C it is noted that face validity of the SV95C is not straightforward: ambulation has many features, and it is difficult to imagine to which extent a change</p>		<p>Comment: The sentence “With respect to the content validity of the SV95C it is noted that face validity of the SV95C is not straightforward:...” is confusing as content validity and face validity are different concepts. It is unclear whether content validity, or face validity, or both of them are considered questionable.</p> <p>Proposed change (if any): With respect to SV95C as a measure of ambulation, content validity and face validity are not straightforward: ambulation has many features, and it is difficult to imagine to which extent a change</p>	

Line number(s) of the relevant text (e.g. Lines 20-23)	Stakeholder number (To be completed by the Agency)	Comment and rationale; proposed changes (If changes to the wording are suggested, they should be highlighted using 'track changes')	Outcome (To be completed by the Agency)
		(this change should also be made in line 2587: "content and face validity".)	
<p>Lines 2591-2593</p> <p>Thus, overall results are supportive for use of a wearable device to assess walking related abilities. This would also include other ambulation related endpoints, e.g. total walking distance, distance covered with walking bouts, stair climbing</p>		<p>Comment: It is unclear how much endorsement is intended for 'other ambulation-related endpoints'. Is the intent to suggest that the data currently presented would support qualification of other outcomes, or just an openness to consider these types endpoints?</p>	
<p>Lines 2691-2693</p> <p>However, the face validity the SV95C is less clear. In fact, change in stair-climbing, ability to self transfer and walking ability and fatigue appear more important to the patients/caregivers than stride velocity.</p>		<p>Proposed change (if any): However, the content validity and face validity of SV95C as a measure of ambulation is less clear. In fact, change in stair-climbing, ability to self transfer and walking ability and fatigue appear more important to the patients/caregivers than maximal stride velocity"</p>	
<p>Lines 2713-2716</p> <p>Of note, this might have been different if the anchor-based methods had allowed for a conclusion on the meaningful change threshold (MCT) of SV95C. The Applicant indicated during the discussion meeting that further research is intended to further substantiate the MCT and to evaluate the predictive value of the SV95C for functional milestones</p>		<p>Comment: We disagree with the notation that this might have been different if the anchor-based methods had allowed for a conclusion on the meaningful change threshold (MCT) of SV95C. The qualification opinion argued both SV95C and 6MWT require consistent findings to support them as outcome measure that reflects / represents the underlying condition.</p> <p>Proposed change (if any): Of note, this might have been different if the anchor based methods had allowed for a conclusion on the meaningful</p>	

Line number(s) of the relevant text (e.g. Lines 20-23)	Stakeholder number <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>	Comment and rationale; proposed changes <i>(If changes to the wording are suggested, they should be highlighted using 'track changes')</i>	Outcome <i>(To be completed by the Agency)</i>
		change threshold (MCT) of SV95C-The Applicant indicated during the discussion meeting that further research is intended to further substantiate the MCT and to evaluate the predictive value of the SV95C for functional milestone	
Lines 2717-2721		<p>Comment: Separate these two sentences into two paragraphs to make the device agnostic statement and final conclusion clearer.</p> <p>Proposed change (if any):</p>	
<p>Lines 2718-2721</p> <p>In conclusion, considering all the above, a qualification of the SV95C as primary endpoint in superiority studies in ambulatory DMD as alternative to the 6MWT is considered acceptable provided that the usual connotation that if the primary endpoint is met the study is a success, is not made.</p>		<p>Comment: The conclusion statement needs to be written more clearly.</p> <p>Proposed change (if any): In conclusion, considering all the above, a qualification of the SV95C as primary endpoint in superiority studies in ambulatory DMD as alternative to the 6MWT is considered acceptable. As indicated in EMA Guideline EMA/CHMP/236981/2011, Corr. 11, "effects on the single selected primary endpoint should be supported by results from the most relevant secondary endpoints for consistency."</p>	

Please add more rows if needed.

List of References

1. Muntoni F, Domingos J, Manzur AY, Mayhew A, Guglieri M; UK NorthStar Network; Sajeev G, Signorovitch J, Ward SJ. Categorising trajectories and individual item changes of the North Star Ambulatory Assessment in patients with Duchenne muscular dystrophy. *PLoS One*. 2019 Sep 3;14(9):e0221097. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0221097. PMID: 31479456; PMCID: PMC6719875.
2. Coratti G, Brogna C, Norcia G, Ricotti V, Abbott L, D'Amico A, Berardinelli A, Vita GL, Lucibello S, Messina S, Sansone V, Albamonte E, Colia G, Salmin F, Gardani A, Manzur A, Main M, Baranello G, Arnoldi MT, Parsons J, Carry T, Connolly AM, Bertini E, Muntoni F, Pane M, Mercuri E. Longitudinal natural history in young boys with Duchenne muscular dystrophy. *Neuromuscul Disord*. 2019 Nov;29(11):857-862. doi: 10.1016/j.nmd.2019.09.010. Epub 2019 Sep 26. PMID: 31629611.
3. Van Ruiten HJ, Straub V, Bushby K, Guglieri M. Improving recognition of Duchenne muscular dystrophy: a retrospective case note review. *Arch Dis Child*. 2014 Dec;99(12):1074-7. doi: 10.1136/archdischild-2014-306366. Epub 2014 Sep 3. PMID: 25187493; PMCID: PMC4251173.
4. Hiebeler, M., Thiele, S., Reilich, P. *et al.* Time to diagnosis of Duchenne muscular dystrophy in Austria and Germany. *Sci Rep* 13, 179 (2023). <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-022-27289-2>
5. Birnkrant DJ, Bushby K, Bann CM, Apkon SD, Blackwell A, Brumbaugh D, Case LE, Clemens PR, Hadjiyannakis S, Pandya S, Street N, Tomezsko J, Wagner KR, Ward LM, Weber DR; DMD Care Considerations Working Group. Diagnosis and management of Duchenne muscular dystrophy, part 1: diagnosis, and neuromuscular, rehabilitation, endocrine, and gastrointestinal and nutritional management. *Lancet Neurol*. 2018 Mar;17(3):251-267. doi: 10.1016/S1474-4422(18)30024-3. Epub 2018 Feb 3. Erratum in: *Lancet Neurol*. 2018 Apr 4;: PMID: 29395989; PMCID: PMC5869704.
6. Beckers P, Caberg JH, Dideberg V, Dangouloff T, den Dunnen JT, Bours V, Servais L, Boemer F. Newborn screening of duchenne muscular dystrophy specifically targeting deletions amenable to exon-skipping therapy. *Sci Rep*. 2021 Feb 4;11(1):3011. doi: 10.1038/s41598-021-82725-z. PMID: 33542429; PMCID: PMC7862591.
7. Uttley, L., Carlton, J., Woods, H.B. *et al.* A review of quality of life themes in Duchenne muscular dystrophy for patients and carers. *Health Qual Life Outcomes* 16, 237 (2018). <https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-018-1062-0>
8. Bendixen RM, *et al.* Participation and quality of life in children with Duchenne muscular dystrophy using the international classification of functioning, disability, and health. *Health Qual Life Outcome*. 2012;10:43.
9. Merlini L, Cicognani A, Malaspina E, Gennari M, Gnudi S, Talim B, Franzoni E. Early prednisone treatment in Duchenne muscular dystrophy. *Muscle Nerve*. 2003 Feb;27(2):222-7. doi: 10.1002/mus.10319. PMID: 12548530.
10. Dangouloff T, Servais L. Clinical Evidence Supporting Early Treatment Of Patients With Spinal Muscular Atrophy: Current Perspectives. *Ther Clin Risk Manag*. 2019;15:1153-1161. Published 2019 Oct 2. doi:10.2147/TCRM.S172291

11. Polavarapu K, Manjunath M, Preethish-Kumar V, Sekar D, Vengalil S, Thomas P, Sathyaprabha TN, Bharath RD, Nalini A. Muscle MRI in Duchenne muscular dystrophy: Evidence of a distinctive pattern. *Neuromuscul Disord*. 2016 Nov;26(11):768-774. doi: 10.1016/j.nmd.2016.09.002. Epub 2016 Sep 5. PMID: 27666775.
12. Peverelli L, Testolin S, Villa L, D'Amico A, Petrini S, Favero C, Magri F, Morandi L, Mora M, Mongini T, Bertini E, Sciacco M, Comi GP, Moggio M. Histologic muscular history in steroid-treated and untreated patients with Duchenne dystrophy. *Neurology*. 2015 Nov 24;85(21):1886-93. doi: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000002147. Epub 2015 Oct 23. PMID: 26497992; PMCID: PMC4662699.
13. CIFFREO/NCT04281485: A PHASE 3, MULTICENTER, RANDOMIZED, DOUBLE-BLIND, PLACEBO CONTROLLED STUDY TO EVALUATE THE SAFETY AND EFFICACY OF PF 06939926 FOR THE TREATMENT OF DUCHENNE MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY
14. EMBARK/NCT05096221: A Phase 3 Multinational, Randomized, Double-Blind, Placebo-Controlled Systemic Gene Delivery Study to Evaluate the Safety and Efficacy of SRP-9001 in Subjects With Duchenne Muscular Dystrophy (EMBARK)
15. NCT03362502: A PHASE 1B MULTICENTER, OPEN-LABEL, SINGLE ASCENDING DOSE STUDY TO EVALUATE THE SAFETY AND TOLERABILITY OF PF-06939926 IN AMBULATORY AND NON-AMBULATORY SUBJECTS WITH DUCHENNE MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY
16. NCT02420379: An Open-Label, Multi-Center Study to Evaluate the Safety, Efficacy and Tolerability of Eteplirsen in Early Stage Duchenne Muscular Dystrophy
17. De Sanctis R, Pane M, Sivo S, Ricotti V, Baranello G, Frosini S, Mazzone E, Bianco F, Fanelli L, Main M, Corlatti A, D'Amico A, Colia G, Scalise R, Palermo C, Alfonsi C, Tritto G, Romeo DM, Graziano A, Battini R, Morandi L, Bertini E, Muntoni F, Mercuri E. Suitability of North Star Ambulatory Assessment in young boys with Duchenne muscular dystrophy. *Neuromuscul Disord*. 2015 Jan;25(1):14-8. doi: 10.1016/j.nmd.2014.09.015. Epub 2014 Oct 6. PMID: 25454732.